1986

Katherine Koulis v. Standard Oil Company of California : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

1. Does the Statute of Limitations concerning fraud, (Utah Code Annotated Section 78-12-26(3), bar an action for breach of lease agreement when the fraud was willfully, knowingly and skillfully concealed, making the discovery of the fraud impossible to determine without a land survey?

2. Did the Standard Oil Company of California maliciously and willfully conceal their alleged breach of the contingent provision provided in paragraph 11 of the 1958 Lease?

3. Did the Plaintiff have an opportunity of knowing the facts that constituted the fraud?

4. When was the fraud discovered?

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On August 22, 1984, the Honorable J. Dennis Frederick, District Judge, issued an Order granting the Defendant's Summary Judgment against the Plaintiff. This Order is annexed hereto and by reference made a part hereof as

Exhibit "E". On September 20, 1984, the Plaintiff filed a Notice of Appeal to the Utah Supreme Court. Said Notice of Appeal is annexed hereto and by reference made a part hereof as Exhibit "F." This is an action for damages for breach of lease agreement. Defendants agreed to build a service station fully and completely on Plaintiff's land. The service station was built partly on Plaintiff's land and partly on a third party's land. This breach of the lease rendered the lease void and unenforceable as far as the Plaintiff was concerned, in that the Plaintiff's right to obtain a modern and up to date service station on their land, on termination of the lease was rendered void and non-existent, in that Plaintiff no longer had a right to a modern and up to date service station upon the Defendants terminating the lease by the Defendants giving the Plaintiff thirty (30) days notice. The mutuality of the lease was completely destroyed. Plaintiff seeks damages by reason of the breach of the lease agreement.

APPELLANT'S FACTS

1. On August 2, 1958, the Defendant oil company entered into an agreement with Pauline Koulis. Plaintiff's predecessor in interest) A true and correct copy of the 1958 lease is annexed hereto as Exhibit "A" and is by reference incorporated by reference.

2. On May 16, 1967, Pauline Koulis entered into a Modification of Lease with the Defendant oil company. See Exhibit "B" which is annexed hereto and is hereby incorporated by reference.

3. The Defendant oil company admits that three (3) days prior to the executing of the May 16, 1967 Modification that they entered into a lease with the Martins; and the further admitted that they had changed their plans from the

building of a service station solely on the Koulis property, to plans in which they intended to put the service station partially on the Martin property in direct violation of the 1958 Lease; and they further admit that they made no mention of this fact in the Modification of Lease which was executed three (3) days after the Martin Lease was signed. The Martin Lease is annexed hereto as Exhibit "C" and is hereby incorporated by reference.

4. The Defendant oil company has never denied that the building of the service station partly on the Martin property and partly on the Koulis property, completely destroyed the mutuality as set forth in paragraph 11 of the August 2, 1958 Lease.

5. The Defendant oil company admits that the Martin Lease in paragraph 9, gave the Martins an option to buy the Koulis property. See also paragraph 26 of the Martin Lease, which is dated May 13, 1967, only three (3) days prior to the date of the execution of the Modification of Lease, annexed hereto as Exhibit "B."

6. The Defendant oil company freely admits that they have not at any time up to the time of the filing of this suit herein, ever notified the Plaintiff or her predecessors in interest, that they had built the service station partly on the Koulis property and partly on the Martin property, well knowing that the Plaintiff and her predecessors in interest were completely misled and honestly believed that the service station was built on their land and that should the oil company terminate the lease, that the Plaintiffs would then become the owners of a modern and up to date service station. As it now stands, should the

oil company terminate the lease, all the Plaintiff will have is a portion of the service station and a potential lawsuit with the Martins.

7. The Defendant oil company admits that Pauline Koulis died on January 20, 1968, a few months after the service station was built. Defendants further admit that Katherine Koulis, other than a ride by the service station on her way to Magna, has never physically inspected the service station and further admit that their records show that she was never shown the exact location of the service station, nor was she ever informed that it was built partially on the Martin property. With the houses all removed, and the service station having been surrounded by a parking lot, it cannot be denied that a mere visual inspection of the service station would not reveal a breach. It is undisputed that the Plaintiff did not know of the breach until after the death of her husband. (Paul Koulis died on April 22, 1981) In fact, it was not until the summer of 1982 that the Defendants gave the Plaintiff a copy of the August 2, 1958 Lease and the May 16, 1967 Modification of Lease. Along with these two documents, the oil company gave Katherine Koulis a copy of the Martin Lease. Upon examining these documents, and upon the property being surveyed, it was then and only then, that the breach of the lease became known. Immediately upon this discovery, a demand was made upon the oil company to comply with the lease agreement; and, upon their refusal, this suit was brought. See Exhibit "D."

8. It has never been denied that the Plaintiff had no dealings whatsoever with Diane Amelia Child, and that she was totally unaware of the breach and fraud herein, prior to her receiving the survey in 1982.

9. Defendants have never denied the fact that the layout of the land and the layout of the service station are such that the exact location of the service station is easily concealed.

10. That the Plaintiff's husband, Paul Koulis, had multiple sclerosis and was confined to his home, bedroom and nursing home for the past ten years of his life.

11. That the Plaintiff being a daughter-in-law, had very little to do with the property until after the death of her husband on April 22, 1981.

12. That paragraph 7 of the August 2, 1958 Lease is in direct conflict with paragraph 11 of said Lease, and by reason thereof, paragraph 7 is totally void.

13. That the August 2, 1958 Lease and the option based thereon will expire on August 2, 1987, and on that day the Plaintiff herein is entitled to a modern and up to date service station, as was set forth in the plans and specifications.

14. That the Defendant Chevron U.S.A. and the other Defendants herein, have willfully and maliciously refused to comply with the August 2, 1958 Lease which contained a condition subsequent, to-wit: that they would build a modern and up to date service station and keep same in good repair. That said service station was to be completely constructed on the leased premises; and that the failure of the Defendants herein to comply with said Lease and condition subsequent, has rendered the August 2, 1958 Lease and the May 16, 1967 Modification of Lease totally void.

15. The Standard Oil Company well knew that William J. Cayias was a practicing lawyer with law offices in Salt Lake City, Utah; and that he had represented Pauline Koulis in all prior lease dealings; never the less, on May 16, 1968, without so much as a phone call to Mr. Cayias, Defendants transported the 78 year old woman, Pauline Koulis, to their law offices and for the paltry sum of One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00), the oil company now claims that the 1958 Lease is extended to the year 1992. The signature of Pauline Koulis was obtained on the Modification of Lease on May 16, 1967. At this time the oil company well knew that they intended to breach the 1958 Lease by placing a service station partly on the Martin property and partly on the Koulis property. The oil company knew that the breach of the contract would render void and valueless paragraph 11 of the 1958 Lease. The Modification of Lease made no mention of the Martin Lease. The Martin Lease was recorded. The Koulis Lease was not recorded. The obvious fraud was concealed, hidden and perpetuated against an aged and terminally ill widow and her crippled son, and the Plaintiff herein.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Plaintiff brought suit for breach of a lease under Utah Code Annotated Section 78-12-26(3). The Plaintiff commenced her action on August 29, 1983, after having served the Defendants with numerous demands that the Lease be complied with and after the Defendants had indicated that they would not comply with the written provisions of the Lease. The wrongdoing had just been discovered! The breach had been carefully concealed. It was only by a professional survey that the fraud was exposed! The survey revealed that the Defendants breached their contract by building a service station on a third party's land, when the contract specifically provided that the service station was to be built on Plaintiff's land.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE I

DOES THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS CONCERNING FRAUD, (UTAH CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 78-12-26(3), BAR AN ACTION FOR BREACH OF LEASE AGREEMENT WHEN THE FRAUD WAS WILLFULLY, KNOWINGLY AND SKILLFULLY CONCEALED, MAKING THE DISCOVERY OF THE FRAUD IMPOSSIBLE TO DETERMINE WITHOUT A LAND SURVEY?

1. Section 78-12-26(3) requires that an action for fraud be brought within three years. But it also expressly states that: ***"the cause of action in such case shall not be deemed to have accrued until the discovery by the aggrieved party of the facts constituting the fraud or mistake." The Plaintiffs have expressly pleaded and by Affidavit and substantial evidence will prove that the Plaintiffs were unaware of the breach of the contract until October of 1982. See Devas v. Noble, 13 Utah 2d 133, 369 P.2d 290. The land in question had all the buildings removed including all fences and all boundaries. In 1958, when the original Lease was executed, the Defendant oil company submitted to the Plaintiff and her attorney, William J. Cayias, plans and specifications which definitely showed that the Defendants were to build a new service station of modern design on Plaintiff's property. On May 13, 1967, while the contract was in full force and effect, the Defendant did without notice of knowledge, purchase the Martin property, which was directly to the north of Plaintiff's land; and in direct violation of Plaintiff's Lease, did by deception and fraud, build a service station partly on Plaintiff's property and partly on the Martin property. The fraud was such that no reasonable person could or would ascertain a breach

of the contract without a survey. The Defendant oil company whose business is founded on leases and contracts, did willfully on May 16, 1967, by devious means, obtain the signature of a 78 year old terminally ill widow, who could not read or write, on a Modification of 1958 Lease, which made no mention of the fact that they intended to build the service station on another persons land in direct violation of the 1958 Lease. By fraud and deception, the Defendants thereby rendered void and valueless paragraph 11 of the 1958 Lease; and the oil company did by further deception extend the Lease until 1992.

2. It has always been the law in Utah that the cause of action in cases where through fraud and deception, the fraud is concealed, that the cause of action in such case shall not be deemed to have accrued until discovery by the aggrieved party. See Clawson v. Boston Acme Mines Dev. Co., 72 Utah 137, 147, 269 P. 147, 59 A.L.R. 1318. Our Supreme Court has always followed the general rule that the Statute of Limitations does not begin to run until the discovery of the facts forming the basis of the cause of action. See Myers v. McDonald, 635 P.2d 84. The concealment and the misleading of facts by a Defendant, precludes the Defendant from relying on the Statute of Limitations. E.G., Vincent v. Salt Lake County, Utah, 583 P.2d 105 (1978); Rice v. Granite School District, 23 Utah 2d 22, 456 P.2d 159 (1969).

3. In fact, our Supreme Court has held that where the judicial action is such that the application of the statute would be irrational or unjust, the Statute of Limitations does not begin to run until the discovery of facts forming the basis for the cause of action. See Hart v. Hart, Fla. App., 234 So.2d 393.

(1970) (conversion); Mumford v. Staton, Whaley & Price, 254 Md. 697, 255 A.2d 359 (1969) (legal malpractice); Thompson v. Equitable Life Assurance Soc. of U.S., 447 Pa. 271, 290 A.2d 422 (1972) (recovery of insurance policy); MedMar, Inc. v. Dilworth, 214 Pa. Super. 402, 257 A.2d 910 (1969) (architect's malpractice); Family Savings and Loan, Inc. v. Cicarello, 157 W.Va 983, 207 S.E.2d 157 (1974) (legal malpractice).

ISSUE II

DID THE STANDARD OIL COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA MALICIOUSLY AND
WILLFULLY CONCEAL THEIR ALLEGED BREACH OF THE CONTINGENT
PROVISION PROVIDED IN PARAGRAPH 11 OF THE 1958 LEASE?

4. The McConkie v. Hartman case, 519 P.2d 801 (Utah 1974) has no application to the instance case in fact or in law. In the instance case, an examination of the property description and proposed plans and specifications for the service station specifically provide for a service station to be built on Plaintiff's land. The Martin Lease was by deception and careful design, not mentioned in the Modification of Lease, even though the Martin Lease was drafted, entered into and executed by the Defendant oil company three days prior to the execution of the Modification of Lease. It is obvious that the oil company did carefully and fraudulently conceal their intended breach from a 78 year old terminally ill widow. The McConkie case pertains to deeds, contracts and legal descriptions, which on their face would have revealed the fraud had they been properly read and examined. In the instance case, the Martin Lease and the construction of the service station were by design, carefully concealed from the Plaintiff and her predecessors in interest. The reading of the 1958 Lease and the Modification reveals no breach whatsoever.

5. The Defendant oil company has suffered no prejudice by reason of the fact that the breach was carefully concealed from the Plaintiff. Defendants' problems of proof occasioned by the delay are no greater than the Plaintiffs. In fact, it is the Defendants' wrongdoing that prevented the Plaintiffs from bringing their suit sooner. The following facts were a fraudulent design:

(a) Why did Defendants fail to mention the Martin Lease when they typed and prepared the Modification agreement of 1967? See Exhibit "B."

(b) Why did the Defendants fail to record the 1958 Lease? On the contrary, why did they see fit only to record a "skeleton" lease?

(c) The Defendants mentioned the Koulis (1958) Lease in the Martin Lease but no mention of the Martin Lease was made in the 1967 Modification!

(d) New plans and specifications were never mentioned in the Modification Agreement, yet the Defendants well knew at this time (May 17, 1967) that they fully intended to breach the 1958 agreement and build the service station partly on the Martin property.

ISSUE III

DID THE PLAINTIFF HAVE AN OPPORTUNITY OF KNOWING THE FACTS
THAT CONSTITUTED THE FRAUD?

A LESSOR OF REAL PROPERTY, IN ABSENCE OF FACTS PUTTING HER
ON NOTICE, HAD NO DUTY TO INVESTIGATE TO DETERMINE WHETHER THE
LESSEE HAD MISREPRESENTED AND PLACED THE SERVICE STATION PARTLY
ON HER LAND AND PARTLY ON A THIRD PARTY'S LAND.

1. Our Supreme Court has ruled time and time again, that a Lessor is not estopped from recovering for a misrepresentation concerning an area of land leased merely because she viewed or inspected the premises so long as she

did not endeavor to determine independently the exact boundaries of the land, nor is the Lessor estopped from recovering for breach of the lease, merely because she might have driven past the land or merely because she had an opportunity to inspect the land. In the instance case, the only evidence that is before the Court, is:

a. That neither Katherine Koulis or her predecessors in interest had any knowledge whatsoever that the service station had been built partly on the Martin property.

b. The Defendant oil company makes much out of the fact that the Plaintiff lived in Salt Lake City; that she was the co-executor of her mother-in-law's estate; that she could have obtained a copy of the lease on request; that she saw the completed service station once in 1968 after the houses had been removed and the service station was surrounded by a parking lot. On these facts and these facts alone, Defendants seek to impose upon the 78 year old widow, a special duty, to seek out and know the truths of their concealed representations, when the truth can only be ascertained by a skilled surveyor. The record is devoid of any evidence that the Plaintiff or her predecessors were ever advised or ever knew that the service station was not built on their property.

ISSUE IV

WHEN WAS THE FRAUD DISCOVERED?

1. It was not until the middle of 1982, on the advice of counsel, that the Plaintiff discovered that the service station was not on her land. Based on the foregoing facts, the Plaintiffs' claim that they are entitled to have a jury determine the factual issues raised in their claim for fraud, and breach of the lease agreement. See Dugan v. Jones, 615 P.2d 1239. The Court's attention is further called to the case of Sorenson v. Adams, 98 Idaho 708, 571 P.2d 769, a

case that was adopted by this Court in Dugan v. Jones, where the court observed, " under the doctrine of constructive fraud, there is a well established exception that a representation must be made knowingly, willingly, and with the intent to deceive. Thus, in a case where the circumstances impose upon a vendor (in this case the oil company that built the service station) a special duty to know the truth of their representations or where the nature of the situation is such that the wrongdoer is presumed to know the facts to which his reputation relates, a representation is fraudulent even though not made knowingly, willfully or with an intent to deceive." See 37 Am.Jur.2d, Fraud and Deceit, Sec.4, p. 23.

2. The facts of this case our clear that the Defendants did by their deception and deceitful practice carefully conceal their fraud in such a manner that the Plaintiff and her predecessors in interest did not discover said deceit until October 1982. The very fact that a survey was necessary, in order to discover the fraud, along with the execution and signing of leases and agreements three days prior to the signing of the Modification Agreement, all show a carefully conceived plan to deprive these Plaintiffs of the mutuality of their contract. The fact that the fraud was not discovered until October of 1982, cannot be used to defeat Plaintiffs' claim. The Defendant oil company would have the court believe that because the Plaintiff lived on the property during the 1950's and through 1967, that she was familiar with the boundary lines. What they have failed to tell the Court is that all the houses were removed and the ground was leveled, property lines and fences were completely destroyed and the land was turned into one large parking lot, after which the service station was built on the southwest corner thereof. Defendants know that the building of the service station partly on the Martin property could not have been ascertained without the use of a survey. A casual inspection would not

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