1986

# Katherine Koulis v. Standard Oil Company of California : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Respondent contends that there are two issues to be determined herein:

1. Whether the trial court was correct in determining that the statute of limitations as contained in Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-23(2) barred appellant's cause of action for breach of contract, and

2. Whether appellant's cause of action for fraud was barred based on the provisions of Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-26(3) requiring a fraud action to be instituted within three years of when discovery of the facts constituting the action should reasonably have been discovered.

It is respondent's position that the trial court was correct in granting summary judgment against the appellant. The facts as presented in the Court below conclusively

established that all of the facts that would put a reasonably prudent person of ordinary intelligence on notice of possible fraud were apparent in 1968. Appellant, however, through her own inattention did not institute her action until 1983. Thus, fifteen years elapsed between the time she should have been aware of her cause, and the time she filed suit. Under the existing law of this state, her claims are now barred.

#### ARGUMENT

1. SUMMARY JUDGMENT WAS PROPER, BASED UPON THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS, WHERE APPELLANT FAILED TO INSTITUTE SUIT UNTIL FIFTEEN YEARS AFTER THE ALLEGED BREACH OF LEASE

Utah Code Annotated § 78-12-23(2) provides that the statute of limitations for an action based upon an instrument in writing is six years. Once it was established that the alleged breach occurred in 1968 (the date the Chevron Station was completed) it was clear that the cause of action for breach of lease was barred.

The applicable case law establishes that appellant's cause of action for the alleged breach of the Lease accrued at the time that the alleged breach occurred. M. H. Walker Realty Co. v. American Surety Company of New York, 211 P. 998, 1008 (Utah 1922) ("These cases undoubtedly support the contention that in an action to recover for the breach of a contract the statute ordinarily begins to run when the breach

occurs and not when the damage is ascertained"). See also Shipp v. O'Dowd, 454 S.W.2d 845 (Tex. Civ. App. 1970) (cause of action for breach of contract arises when the breach occurs). Stated differently and in general terms, a plaintiff's cause of action accrues "at the time it becomes remediable in the courts," O'Hair v. Kounalis, 23 Utah 2d 355, 463 P.2d 799, 800 (1970), or "upon the happening of the last event necessary to complete the cause of action." Myers v. McDonald, 635 P.2d 84, 86 (Utah 1981).

Under any of the formulations of the Utah Supreme Court quoted above, appellant's cause of action for the alleged breach of the Lease must have arisen no later than 1968, the year that the Chevron Station was completed. Any breach of the Lease based upon the fact that the Chevron Station was not constructed entirely upon the Koulis Property could not have occurred at any time beyond 1968, for appellant admits that the Chevron Station was entirely completed in 1968. Deposition of Katherine Koulis dated January 10, 1984, p.28. Consequently, appellant's failure to bring her action within six years from the date on which the Chevron Station was completed renders her claim time-barred under the provisions of Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-23(2). The Chevron Station was fully constructed by 1968. Therefore, appellant's cause of action for breach of the Lease ran in 1974, and is now barred.

Even if it were assumed, arguendo, that an exception does exist in the law of this state for "fraudulent concealment" of a breach of lease, appellant failed to come forward with any facts in the tribunal below which support such a contention. There are but two contentions by appellant concerning "concealment."

The first contention is that respondent failed to tell either appellant or her predecessors that the Chevron Station was being built on two parcels of land. This failure would have occurred in 1967 or 1968. The second contention is that when respondent recorded the Martin lease in 1968 it only recorded a "skeleton" lease thus making it more difficult for appellant to learn of the Martin interest in the service station. As found by the court below, neither of these "facts" could possibly relieve appellant of her duty of reasonable inquiry.

Although the Utah Supreme Court has held in some instances that a plaintiff's proof of concealment or misleading by the defendant constitutes an exception to the general bar of the Statute of Limitations and precludes the defendant from relying on the limitations argument (Myers v. McDonald, 635 P.2d 84, 86 (Utah 1981)), appellant's mere allegation that she was ignorant of her claim until October, 1982 is insufficient under the law to toll the applicable statute of limitations. Amundson v. Mutual Benefit Health & Accident Association, 13

Utah 2d 407, 375 P.2d 463 (1962) (holding that plaintiff's claim for insurance death benefits which was not made until thirty-three years after the death of the insured was barred by § 78-12-23, regardless of plaintiff's allegation that she was not aware that the policy existed and that she was a beneficiary under the policy.) Once the respondent proved, prima facie, a statute of limitations defense, appellant, in the court below, was required to sustain the burden of showing that a genuine triable issue of fact existed with respect to the statute of limitations. Clawson v. Boston Acme Mines Development Company, 72 U. 137, 269 P. 147 (holding that if a defendant foreign corporation sets up in its answer that plaintiff's action is barred by the statute of limitations, plaintiff must in his reply state facts and circumstances sufficient to toll the statute.) Importantly, the appellant states in her deposition that the only circumstance she alleges was fraudulantly concealed from her or her predecessors in interest, was that the Chevron Station was built partly on the property of another. Deposition of Katherine Koulis dated June 15, 1984, pp. 38-40. Appellant has admitted she was unaware of what the respondent did to conceal this fact. Id. at 43.

It is not surprising that appellant has failed to plead or discuss her argument of fraudulent concealment with more particularity. To do so would require her to plead and



prove that respondent somehow concealed from her view the whereabouts of the Chevron Station and/or prevented her from reading the very terms of the Lease which she claims was breached -- a Lease which was a significant asset of the estate for which appellant served as executrix; a Lease appellant was at least generally aware of as early as 1958, and the rights to which she inherited from the original lessor, Pauline Koulis, in 1968. Simply to state the proof required is to expose the absurdity of appellant's argument of fraudulent concealment. There was no evidence brought forward by appellant even suggesting that respondent in any way tried to prevent her from obtaining a copy of the relevant Lease or in any way tried to prevent her from observing where the Chevron Station was constructed. Appellant concedes that respondent gave her a copy of the Lease as soon as she bothered to ask for one. Deposition of Katherine Koulis dated January 10, 1984, p.32. Indeed, it would have been next to impossible, if not impossible, for respondent to have tried to conceal the fact that approximately one-half of the Chevron Station was not constructed on the Koulis Property, because the appellant lived on the Koulis Property from the 1950's through 1967 and was familiar with property lines surrounding it. Deposition of Katherine Koulis dated June 15, 1984, pp. 63-70; Deposition of Katherine Koulis dated January 10, 1984, pp. 24, 30-32.

Finally, appellant cannot successfully plead and prove fraudulent concealment in the instant case because the undisputed facts, far from showing concealment, demonstrate as a matter of law that appellant should have discovered the existence of her cause of action through reasonable care and inquiry. This argument will be developed fully in that portion of this brief dealing with application of the statute of limitations to appellant's claim for fraud.<sup>4</sup>

In Myers v. McDonald, supra, 635 P.2d 84 (Utah 1981), Justice Oaks of the Utah Supreme Court reiterated the important policy considerations supporting statutes of limitations generally. Quoting the United States Supreme Court, Justice Oaks emphasized that statutes of limitations "are designed to promote justice by preventing surprises through the revival of claims that have been allowed to slumber until evidence has been lost, memories have faded, and witnesses have disappeared." Id. at 86.

Certainly these off-quoted policy considerations apply to the present case and compel the conclusion that appellant's actions should be barred by the statute of limitations. Appellant claims that respondent breached a Lease entered into

---

<sup>4</sup>It is submitted that the rules concerning delayed discovery and reasonable inquiry are the same for contract actions as they are for fraud actions.

in 1958. Fifteen years have passed since 1968, the time of the alleged breach. During that time, not only have witnesses forgotten the circumstances surrounding the terms of the Lease and the building of the Chevron Station, but key witnesses with respect to the terms of the Lease, Pauline Koulis and her son, Paul Koulis, have died.

The present dispute is a prime example of a situation where the statute of limitations should be applied to protect respondent from the assertion of stale claims.

2. SUMMARY JUDGMENT WAS PROPERLY BASED UPON THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS WHERE THE FRAUD ALLEGED BY APPELLANT OCCURRED IN 1968 AND SUIT WAS NOT INSTITUTED UNTIL 1983 AND APPELLANT FAILED TO PRESENT A LEGALLY COGNIZABLE EXCUSE FOR THE DELAY

Under Utah law, actions based on allegations of fraud or mistake are subject to a three year statute of limitations. Section 78-12-26(3) of Utah Code states that a suit must be brought within three years for "[a]n action for relief on the ground of fraud or mistake; but the cause of action in such case shall not be deemed to have accrued until the discovery by the aggrieved party of the fraud or mistake."

The Utah Supreme Court, however, has qualified the language of §78-12-26(3) by declaring that the three year limitations period begins to run either from the time the plaintiff discovers the fraud, or from the time the plaintiff reasonably should have known of the fraud. McConkie v.

Hartman, supra, 529 P.2d 801 (Utah 1974) (holding plaintiff's action time-barred under Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-26(3) because eight years had elapsed in which time reasonable inquiry by the plaintiff would have put him on notice of the alleged mistake or fraud); Gibson v. Jensen, 48 U. 244, 158 P. 426, 427 (1916) (one informed of such facts as will put a person of ordinary intelligence and prudence on inquiry has received information sufficient to start the running of the statute of limitations); Larsen v. Utah Loan & Trust Co., 65 P. 208, 211 (Utah 1901) (the statute of limitations for fraud commences to run upon discovery of the fraud, or of facts sufficient to put an ordinarily intelligent person on inquiry); Taylor v. Moore, 51 P.2d 222, 228 (Utah 1935) ("A party who has opportunity of knowing the facts constituting the alleged fraud cannot be inactive and afterwards allege a want of knowledge that arose by his own laches and negligence.")

In McConkie v. Hartman, 529 P.2d 801 (Utah 1974) the Utah Supreme Court affirmed the lower court's application of UCA § 78-12-26(3) to bar plaintiffs' claims for fraud, in spite of plaintiffs' contention that there had been fraudulent concealment. The court refused to reform plaintiffs' warranty deeds to strike out certain reservations of mineral rights because plaintiffs had ample opportunity to discover any fraud or mistake by familiarizing themselves with the language of the

deeds. The court was unsympathetic to the fact that plaintiffs had not seen the deeds after their recordation. At page 802 the court explained:

It is the plaintiffs' claim here as well as in the court below that there was a fraudulent concealment on the part of the defendants which postponed the commencement of the running of the statute pursuant to the provisions of Section 78-12-26(3) . . . .

The court below found that the plaintiffs had full opportunity to discover the reservations in the deeds when the deeds were delivered to Security Title Company and when they reviewed problems in the chain of title. That all of the circumstances existing at or about the time the deeds were recorded were such as to furnish full opportunity to the plaintiffs for the discovery of the mistake or fraud, if any existed. The court further found that more than eight years had elapsed since the time for reasonable inquiry on the part the plaintiffs would have revealed the mistake or fraud to the time of filing their complaint.

In McConkie, plaintiffs' action was barred because of their unreasonable failure for some 8 years to apprise themselves of certain deed provisions. In the present case, appellant's action should likewise be barred because of her unreasonable failure for some 15 years to apprise herself of certain Lease provisions.

Both state and federal courts have not hesitated to determine the due diligence issue as a matter of law when, as here, the circumstances clearly warranted it. Thus, the Utah Supreme Court in Gibson v. Jensen, supra, 158 P. 426, 428

(Utah 1916) reversed a lower court judgment for the plaintiff, holding as a matter of law that "plaintiff possessed all the information required by our statute respecting the alleged fraud more than three years preceding the bringing of the action."

In Helfer v. Hubert, 24 Cal. Rptr. 900 (District Court of Appeal, Second District, Division 3, California 1962) the court held that purchasers of a residence were barred from bringing an action for fraud on grounds that the vendors had falsely represented that the property had proper drainage, because the action was brought more than three years after the plaintiffs knew of the alleged fraud or had knowledge of facts sufficient to put a prudent man on inquiry. The court held:

[W]hen the knowledge had by or imputed to plaintiff is such as to compel the conclusion that a prudent man would have suspected the fraud, the court may determine as a matter of law that there has been "discovery." Bainbridge v. Stoner, 16 Cal. 2d, 423, 430, 106 P.2d 423; Lady Washington C. Co. v. Wood, 113 Cal. 482, 486, 45 P. 809; Haley v. Santa Fe Imp. Co., 5 Cal. App. 2d 415, 42 P.2d 1078.

24 Cal. Rptr. 900, 902 (emphasis added); Accord, Beresford v. Horn 273 P.2d 302 (District Court of Appeal, Second District, Division 3, California 1954) (summary judgment against plaintiffs who had purchased and lived in a dwelling house which failed in obvious particulars to meet the requirements of

local building ordinances and who were unreasonable as a matter of law in failing to discover the nonconformance during their first thirteen months of occupancy); Wise v. Anderson, 359 S.W. 2d 876, 879 (Tex. 1962) (as a matter of law plaintiff-lessor's action was barred by statute of limitations because plaintiff had "knowledge of facts that would cause reasonably prudent person to make inquiry which would lead to a discovery of the fraud."); Polk Terrace, Inc. v. Curtis, 422 S.W. 2d 603, 605 (Tex. Civ. App. 1967) ("As a matter of law in the light of their own testimony, appellees for more than two years prior to the institution of their suit on October 1, 1965 had knowledge of such facts as would cause a reasonably prudent person to make inquiry which would have led to a discovery of the fraud."); Mason v. Laramie Rivers Co., 490 P.2d 1062, 1065 (Wyo. 1971) (granting summary judgment to defendant corporation on grounds that plaintiff shareholders' fraud action was barred by the statute of limitations; the corporate books and records contained information which would have apprised plaintiffs of the fraud if only plaintiffs had exercised due diligence and checked the corporate records).

So, too, the District Court for the Eastern District of Wisconsin, in Cahill v. Ernst & Ernst 448 F. Supp. 84 (E.D. Wisconsin 1978) affirmed a grant of summary judgment in favor

of the defendant as to plaintiff's claims of fraud under the federal securities laws. Although the applicable statute of limitations in that case was a provision from Wisconsin's Blue Sky Laws, the court analogized to Wisconsin's statute of limitations for general fraud actions which, like the Utah statute at issue in the present case, provides that "the cause of action in [a fraud] case is not deemed to have accrued until discovery, by the aggrieved party, of the facts constituting the fraud." The court quoted with approval the following language of a previous Wisconsin case, Koehler v. Haechler, 27 Wis.2d, 275, 278, 133 N.W.2d 730, 731 (1965):

Actual and complete knowledge of the fraud on the part of the plaintiff is not necessary in order to set the limitation period running.

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